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independent auditor’s repor t
To the Electric Power Board of the Metropolitan
Government of Nashville and Davidson County
Nashville, Tennessee
REPORT ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
We have audited the accompanying statement of net position of the Electric Power Board of the Metropolitan
Government of Nashville and Davidson County (the “Electric Power Board”), a component unit of the Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County, Tennessee, as of June 30, 2015 and 2014, and the related
statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position and of cash flows for the years then ended, and
the related notes to the financial statements.
MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILIT Y FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILIT Y
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our
audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the Electric Power Board ‘s preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Electric Power Board’s internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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OPINION
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Electric Power Board as of June 30, 2015 and 2014, and the changes in its net position and its
cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.
EMPHA SIS OF MAT TER
As discussed in Note 1, the Electric Power Board adopted the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) No. 68 Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions – An Amendment of GASB Statement No. 27.
Our opinion is not modified in respect to this matter.
OTHER MAT TERS
Required Supplementary Information
The accompanying management’s discussion and analysis on pages 22 through 33 is required by accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America to supplement the basic financial statements.
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in the appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to
our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audits of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
OTHER REPORTING REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 28, 2015 on our
consideration of the Electric Power Boards internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of
that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering
the Electric Power Board’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Nashville, Tennessee
October 28, 2015
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management’s discussion & analysis
As financial management of the Electric Power Board of the Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson
County (the “Board”), we offer readers of these financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the
financial activities of the Board for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 as compared to fiscal years 2014
and 2013, respectively. The Electric Power Board adopted GASB Statement No. 68 Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Pensions, which required the presentation of a net pension obligation in the amount of $165.4 million
and $149.0 million at June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The standard also changed the required disclosures
for pension activity in the financial statements. Amounts prior to fiscal 2014 were not amended for this standard.
In conducting the operations of the electrical distribution system, the Board does business as Nashville Electric
Service (“NES”). NES is a component unit of the Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County,
Tennessee (the “Metropolitan Government”). We refer to our infrastructure as “the Electric System.” This discussion
and analysis is designed to assist the reader in focusing on the significant financial issues and activities and to
identify any significant changes in financial position. Certain reclassifications have been made to the fiscal year
2014 amounts to conform to the fiscal year 2015 presentation and the adoption of GASB 68. We encourage readers
to consider the information presented here in conjunction with the financial statements taken as a whole.
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to NES’ financial statements, which are comprised
of the basic financial statements and the notes to the financial statements. Since NES is comprised of a single enterprise
fund, no fund-level financial statements are shown.
The Company adopted GASB 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, during fiscal 2015. The purpose of
this standard was to improve the transparency of pension obligations and related funding status by presenting the
net pension liability on the statement of net assets of the plan sponsor. This standard also changed how funding is
recognized, and changed the elements of pension expense. However, the funding requirements were not impacted
by this standard; only the manner in which the funding is recognized in the financial statements.
The standard required retroactive application to the most recent preceding year for comparative financial statements.
NES recorded the effects of adopting GASB 68 beginning in July of 2013 through the recognition of a net pension liability
with a corresponding offset to unrestricted net position of $179.1 million. Accordingly, all comparative periods for fiscal
year 2015 and fiscal year 2014 reflect results with this new accounting standard.
The most significant impact of the adoption of this standard is the recognition of the net pension liability of $165.4 million
and $149.0 million at June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The 2014 Change in Net Position increased approximately
$5.0 million from amounts previously reported.
Other effects of the adoption of GASB 68 included the following:
The accounting for pension activity under the new standard results in deferred outflows (delayed recognition of
unfavorable investment income changes or unfavorable actuarial changes) and deferred inflows (delayed recognition
of favorable investment income changes or favorable actuarial changes). All deferred investment income changes
(whether favorable or unfavorable) are combined together for a net balance sheet presentation.
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These changes will be amortized into net pension expense over five years for investment related deferrals, and
approximately eight years for actuarially determined deferrals beginning in the year that the inflow or outflow
is initially recognized.
At June 30, 2015 and 2014, deferred investment related inflows, net were $6.9 million and $29.3 million, respectively.
The decrease in the net deferred investment inflows for the period ending June 30, 2015 as compared to the same
period ended June 30, 2014 was primarily due to investment results that were $18.8 million less than expected when
compared to actuarial projections for each period. Approximately $3.9 million of these net deferred inflows were
amortized in 2015, reducing pension expense by the same amount.
At June 30, 2015 and 2014, deferred actuarial outflows were $6.0 million and $5.4 million, respectively. These actuarial
outflows relate to an unfavorable actuarial change from the June 2014 annual plan measurement. In fiscal 2015, there
were unfavorable developments of $1.8 million. Approximately $1.0 million of these net deferred outflows were amortized
in 2015, increasing pension expense by the same amount.
The administrative and general expenses (and pension expense) decreased by $5.0 million (as compared to the prior
accounting method) for the twelve months ended June 30, 2014 due to the adoption of GASB 68.
BA SIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The basic financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of NES’ finances in a manner
similar to that of a private-sector business.
The statements of net position present information on all of NES’ assets and deferred outflows of resources, liabilities
and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases
or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of NES is improving or
deteriorating. Net position increases when revenues exceed expenses. Increases to assets without a corresponding
increase to liabilities result in increased net position, which indicates an improved financial position.
The statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position present information showing how NES’ net position
changed during the fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event occurs, regardless
of timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported for some items that will only result in cash
flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., earned but unused vacation leave).
The statements of cash flows present changes in cash and cash equivalents resulting from operating, financing, and
investing activities. These statements present cash receipts and cash disbursements information, without consideration as to the timing for the earnings event, when an obligation arises, or depreciation of capital assets.
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SUMMARY OF CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $542.9 million
at June 30, 2015, and $487.1 million at June 30, 2014. This represents an increase of $55.8 million in 2015 and
$65.9 million in 2014.
The largest portion of the Board’s net position reflects its investment in capital assets less any related debt used
to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The Board uses these capital assets to provide service and consequently, these assets are not available to liquidate liabilities or for other spending.
An additional portion of the Board’s net position represents resources that are subject to external restrictions
on how they may be used. These restrictions include bond proceeds to be used for construction projects and
reserve funds required by bond covenants.
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION ($000 OMITTED)
		
2015

June 30,
2014

2013

$466,859

$437,487

$383,072

INVESTMENT OF RESTRICTED FUNDS

145,640

182,801

81,310

UTILITY PLANT, NET

919,884

901,696

890,320

3,356

2,804

2,265

1,535,739

1,524,788

1,356,967

25,401

15,200

11,195

$1,561,140

$1,539,988

$1,368,162

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
CURRENT ASSETS

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
TOTAL ASSETS AND
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

24

management’s discussion & analysis continued

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION ($000 OMITTED) continued
		
2015

June 30,
2014

2013

$200,358

$205,494

$194,567

37,283

33,895

30,669

LONG TERM DEBT, LESS CURRENT PORTION

599,342

622,309

529,115

NET PENSION LIABILITY

165,435

148,956

—

8,912

12,994

13,557

1,011,330

1,023,648

767,908

6,945

29,288

—

384,058

375,144

344,661

RESTRICTED, NET

63,730

62,979

54,735

UNRESTRICTED

95,077

48,929

200,858

542,865

487,052

600,254

$1,561,140

$1,539,988

$1,368,162

LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
	CURRENT LIABILITIES PAYABLE
FROM RESTRICTED ASSETS

OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
NET POSITION
NET INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS

TOTAL NET POSITION
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS
OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION
LIQUIDIT Y AND C APITAL RESOURCES

The Board has sufficient debt capacity and a strong financial position. Therefore, the tax-exempt bond market
is expected to be a future source of liquidity to supplement cash flows from operations for capital maintenance
and expansion. On May 19, 2015, the Board issued $112.9 million in Electric System Revenue Refunding Bonds,
2015 Series A, with an interest rate of 5.0 percent to advance refund $121.3 million of outstanding 2008 Series A
and 2008 Series B bonds with interest rates of 4.25 percent to 5.0 percent and 4.75 percent to 5.0 percent,
respectively. The Board completed the advance refunding to reduce its total debt service payments over the
next 18 years. The advance refunding resulted in a $9.0 million savings in future interest expense. The refunded
portion represents significantly all of the outstanding 2008 Series A Bonds, and a significant portion of outstanding
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2008 Series B bonds. The net proceeds of $135.6 million (after payment of $0.9 million in underwriting fees and
other issuance costs) plus an additional $0.3 million of monies transferred from the Debt Service Fund were
placed in escrow. These funds were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for all
future debt service payments on the refunded portion of 2008 A and 2008 B Series Revenue Bonds. Funds
deposited with the escrow agent were used to purchase U.S. Treasury Obligations. As a result, $78.9 million
of the 2008 Series A and $42.4 million of 2008 Series B outstanding bonds are considered defeased and the
liability for those bonds have been removed from the Statements of Net Position as of June 30, 2015.
The advance refunding resulted in a difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of
the old debt of $14.3 million, which is reported as a component of deferred outflows on the Statements of Net
Position. The bonds have an aggregate principal amount of $112.9 million, were issued at a premium totaling
$23.4 million, and mature annually on May 15, 2019 through 2033.
On June 25, 2014, the Board closed on the sale of the Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County,
Tennessee, Electric System Revenue Bonds, 2014 Series A. The 2014 Series A Bonds were issued to finance the
costs of acquisition, expansion, and improvements to the Electric System in accordance with the Board’s
capital improvement plan, to fund the Debt Service Reserve Account established under the Bond Resolution,
and to pay costs of issuance of the bonds. The bonds have an aggregate principal amount of $109.1 million,
including both serial and term issuances. The 2014 Series A Bonds were issued at a premium totaling $16.5
million. The serial bonds totaling $88.0 million mature annually on May 15, 2015 through 2036. A term bond
totaling $21.1 million matures May 15, 2039. The Board has $78.0 million and $117.0 million in proceeds from
the 2014 Series A Bond issuance in cash and cash equivalents at June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively, and are
reported as a component of Investment of Restricted Funds in the accompanying Statements of Net Position.
During fiscal 2015, NES drew $39.0 million of funds from these bonds. During fiscal year 2014, NES drew no funds
from the System Revenue Bonds, 2014 Series A, for capital expenditures.
In addition to operating cash flow and proceeds from tax-exempt bonds, the Board has a $25 million line-of-credit,
which is renewed each year. The credit facility is not a source of liquidity for ongoing operations. It is available as
an additional funding source in the event of a natural catastrophe.
The Board’s financing cost may be impacted by short-term and long-term debt ratings assigned by independent
rating agencies. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, the Board’s revenue bonds were rated at AA+ by both
Standard & Poor’s and Fitch. In issuing bond ratings, agencies typically evaluate financial operations, rate-setting
practices, and debt ratios. Higher ratings aid in securing favorable borrowing rates, which result in lower interest costs.
Debt ratings are based, in significant part, on the Board’s performance as measured by certain credit measures.
In order to maintain its strong credit ratings, the Board has adopted certain financial goals. Such goals provide
a signal to the Board as to the adequacy of rates for funding ongoing cash flows from operations. One such goal
is a cash goal of 16.5 percent of purchased power, and operating and maintenance expense. This goal was met
every month of the fiscal year 2015. That percentage was 28.2 percent as of June 30, 2015, and 25.0 percent as of
June 30, 2014. The Board also has a goal of maintaining a debt coverage ratio of at least 2 to 1. The Board’s debt
coverage ratio for the 12 months ended June 30, 2015, was 3.1 to 1. The Board continues to exceed its goals.
The outlook on all debt ratings is stable as of June 30, 2015.
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COMPARISON OF C ASH BAL ANCES TO NES’ GOALS
$350,000,000
$300,000,000
$250,000,000
$200,000,000
$150,000,000
$100,000,000
$50,000,000
$0
■ C A SH
■ GOAL

2011
$159, 380,000
$109,685,000

2012
$198,756,000
$103,837,000

2013
$221,722,000
$173, 525,000

2014
$267,994,000
$176,854,000

2015
$303,851,000
$178,074,000

OPER ATIONS SUMMARY RE VENUE & EXPENSE DATA ($000 OMITTED)
Year Ended
June 30,

2015

OPERATING REVENUES, NET
PURCHASED POWER
OPERATING REVENUES, NET,
LESS PURCHASED POWER
OPERATING EXPENSES
DEPRECIATION AND
TAX EQUIVALENTS
INTEREST INCOME
INTEREST EXPENSE, NET
INCREASE IN NET POSITION
EFFECT OF ADOPTION OF GASB 68
INCREASE IN NET POSITION,
AS PREVIOUSLY STATED

Year Ended
June 30,

2014

CHANGE
IN NET
POSITION

Year Ended
June 30,

2013

CHANGE
IN NET
POSITION

$1,246,632

$1,241,434

$5,199

$1,174,424

$67,009

(929,726)

(926,575)

(3,151)

(900,916)

(25,659)

316,906

314,859

2,048

273,508

41,350

(149,512)

(145,267)

(4,246)

(150,749)

5,483

(87,076)

(81,747)

(5,329)

(71,695)

(10,052)

995

295

700

525

(230)

(25,500)

(22,236)

(3,264)

(23,797)

1,561

55,813

65,904

(10,091)

27,792

38,112

—

(4,997)

4,997

—

(4,997)

$ 55,813

$ 60,907

$ (5,094)

$ 27,792

$ 33,115
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2015 AND 2014 RESULTS OF OPER ATIONS
Operating Revenues, net. Operating revenues increased by $5.2 million, or 0.4 percent, when compared to 2014.
Total electric sales were $1.2 billion for each year. The average realized rate on electric sales was $.1023 per
kilowatt-hour in 2015 compared to $.1014 per kilowatt-hour in 2014. Megawatt-hours sold in 2015 decreased
by 0.4 percent when compared to 2014. Weather plays an important part in determining revenue for any year.
The impact of weather is reflected in the comparison of degree-days from one period to the next. Degree-days
represent the difference between the weather’s average daily temperatures minus 65 degrees. Temperatures
above 65 degrees are considered cooling degree-days; temperatures below 65 degrees are considered heating
degree-days. Total cooling degree-days were 1,791 compared to 1,820 in 2014. Total heating degree-days were
3,790 compared to 3,930 in 2014. Total heating and cooling degree-days were 5,581 compared to 5,750 in 2014,
or a decrease of approximately 2.9 percent. Total average number of active year-to-date customers increased
by 1.6 percent when compared to 2014. Revenue in Excess of Net Bills (Late Charges) decreased by $0.2 million,
and Rentals of Electric Property (primarily pole attachments) decreased by $1.0 million.

MEGAWAT T-HOURS SOLD
12,400,000
12,200,000
12,000,000
11,800,000
11,600,000
11,400,000
11,200,000
■ MEGAWAT T
HOURS SOLD

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

12, 277,000

11,617,000

11,756,000

12,058,000

12,013,000

Non-operating Revenues. Interest Income was $1.0 million compared to $0.3 million in 2014. The average rate
of return on the General Fund was 0.10 percent in 2015 compared to 0.09 percent in 2014. The average monthly
investible balance of the General Fund was $255.6 million in 2015 compared to $219.6 million in 2014, an
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increase of 16.4 percent. Interest income increased due to the investment of Special Construction Funds
from the 2014 Series A Electric Service Revenue Bond issuance previously held as cash at June 30, 2014.
Operating Expenses. The Board purchases all of its power from TVA under a full-requirements contract
that had an initial term of 20 years. Beginning on December 19, 1989, and on each subsequent anniversary
thereafter, the contract is automatically extended for an additional one-year period. The contract is subject
to earlier termination by either party on not less than 10 years’ prior written notice. Purchased power was
$929.7 million for the period compared to $926.6 million last year. The average realized rate on purchased
power was $.077 per kilowatt-hour in both 2015 and 2014. Megawatt-hours purchased were 12.4 million in
2015 compared to 12.5 million in 2014.
Distribution expenses for the period were $59.5 million compared to $61.9 million last year. This is a decrease of
$2.4 million or 0.4 percent. The change is primarily attributable to decreases in the following expense categories:
Tree trimming, $2.7 million; operation and maintenance miscellaneous, $0.8 million; storm restoration, $0.3 million;
operation and maintenance of street light and signal systems, $0.3 million; and operation and maintenance of
private lights, $0.1 million. These decreases were offset by increases in the following expense categories: Operation
and maintenance of overhead lines, $1.1 million; operation and maintenance of supervision and engineering,
$0.5 million; operation and maintenance of load dispatching, $0.2 million; and operation and maintenance of
station equipment, $0.1 million.
Customer Accounts expense and Customer Service and Information expenses combined were $21.9 million
for the period compared to $21.5 million last year or an increase of $0.4 million or 0.02 percent. This is primarily
the result of increases in the following expense categories: Customer assistance, $0.5 million; data processing,
$0.3 million; and customer orders and service, $0.1 million. These increases were offset by decreases in the
following expense categories: Meter reading, $0.3 million; customer records and collections, $0.2 million;
and supervision, $0.1 million.
Administrative and General (A&G) expenses were $68.2 million for the period compared to $61.9 million last year.
This was an increase of $6.3 million or 10.2 percent. The increase is attributable to increases in the following expense
categories: Employee pension, $3.2 million; employee health insurance, $1.5 million; injuries and damages, $0.6 million;
outside services employed, $0.6 million; data processing, $0.4 million; miscellaneous general expenses, $0.2 million;
maintenance of general plant, $0.1 million; and office supplies and expenses, $0.1 million. These increases were
offset by decreases in the following expense categories: Employee welfare, $0.3 million; and duplicate credit
charges, $0.2 million.
Depreciation and Taxes and Equivalents were $53.3 million and $33.8 million, respectively, for 2015, compared to
$49.1 million and $32.6 million, respectively, for 2014. The increase in depreciation was the result of a net increase
in investments of depreciable property of $69.3 million. Tax equivalents consist primarily of payments in–lieu-of
taxes to the Metropolitan Government and the surrounding counties. Such payments are calculated based on a
prescribed formula that takes into consideration utility plant value and the average of the Board’s last three years’
operating margin. The increase in payments in-lieu-of taxes was the result of increases in tax rates coupled with
increased investment in the utility plant.
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2014 AND 2013 RESULTS OF OPER ATIONS
Operating Revenues, net. Operating revenues, net increased by $67.0 million in 2014, or 5.7 percent, when compared
to 2013. Total electric sales were $1.22 billion in 2014 versus $1.15 billion in 2013. The average realized rate on
electric sales was $.1014 per kilowatt-hour in 2014 compared to $.0981 per kilowatt-hour in 2013. The increase
in average realized rate in 2014 is the result of a 3.8 percent increase in retail rates, effective October 1, 2013.
Megawatt-hours sold in 2014 increased by 2.6 percent when compared to 2013. Weather plays an important part
in determining revenue for any year. The impact of weather is reflected in the comparison of degree-days from
one period to the next. Degree-days represent the difference between the weather’s average daily temperatures
minus 65 degrees. Temperatures above 65 degrees are considered cooling degree-days; temperatures below
65 degrees are considered heating degree-days. Total cooling degree-days were 1,820 in 2014 compared to 1,808
in 2013. The 2014 total heating degree-days were 3,930 compared to 3,505 in 2013. Total heating and cooling
degree-days were 5,750 in 2014 compared to 5,313 in 2013, or an increase of approximately 8.2 percent. Total
average number of active year-to-date customers increased by 1.1 percent in 2014 when compared to 2013.
Revenue in excess of net bills (Late Charges) increased by $0.3 million, and rentals of electric property (primarily
pole attachments) decreased by $0.1 million
Non-operating Revenues. Interest income was $0.3 million in 2014 compared to $0.5 million in 2013. The average
rate of return on the General Fund was 0.09 percent in 2014 compared to 0.16 percent in 2013. The average monthly
investible balance of the General Fund was $219.6 million in 2014 compared to $181.7 million in 2013, an increase
of 20.9 percent. In addition, interest income from the bond reserve fund decreased by $0.02 million in 2014 when
compared to 2013.
Purchased Power and Operating Expenses. The Board purchases all of its power from the Tennessee Valley Authority
(“TVA”) under an all-requirements contract that had an initial term of 20 years. Beginning on December 19, 1989,
and on each subsequent anniversary thereafter, the contract is automatically extended for an additional one-year
period. The contract is subject to earlier termination by either party on not less than 10 years’ prior written notice.
Purchased power was $926.6 million in 2014 compared to $900.9 million in 2013. The average realized rate on
purchased power was $.077 per kilowatt-hour in 2014 compared to $.074 per kilowatt-hour in 2013. Megawatthours purchased were 12.5 million in 2014 compared to 12.1 million in 2013.
Distribution expenses for the period were $61.9 million compared to $59.3 million last year. This is an increase of
$2.6 million or 4.4 percent. The change is primarily attributable to an increase in the following expense categories:
Operation and maintenance of supervision and engineering, $1.4 million; operation and maintenance of miscellaneous expense, $0.7 million; load dispatching, $0.6 million; operation and maintenance of station equipment,
$0.5 million; emergency services, $0.2 million; operation and maintenance of meters, $0.2 million; and operation
and maintenance of underground lines; $0.1 million; Those increases were offset by decreases in the following
expense categories: Operation and maintenance of street light and signal system, $0.5 million; operation and
maintenance of overhead lines, $0.3 million; operation and maintenance of line transformers, $0.2 million; and
operation and maintenance of mapping, $0.1 million.
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Customer accounts expense and Customer service and information expenses combined were $21.5 million in
2014 compared to $23.7 million in 2013 or a decrease of $2.2 million or 9.3 percent. This was primarily the result
of decreases in customer assistance expense category, $0.5 million.
Administrative and general expenses were $61.9 million in 2014 compared to $67.8 million in 2013. This was a decrease
of $5.9 million or 8.7 percent. The decrease was primarily the result of decreases in the following expense categories:
Pension and retirement benefits due to the adoption of GASB 68, $5.0 million; employee health insurance, $0.5 million;
duplicate credit charges, $0.3 million; miscellaneous general expenses, $0.3 million; office supplies and expenses,
$0.3 million; injuries and damages, $0.2 million. Those decreases were offset by increases in the following expense
categories: Data processing, $0.4 million; and administrative and general salaries, $0.3 million.
Depreciation, and Tax equivalents were $49.1 million and $32.6 million, respectively, for 2014, compared to $39.5 million
and $32.2 million, respectively, for 2013. The increase in depreciation was the result of fully depreciated assets in the
prior year. Tax equivalents consist primarily of payments in-lieu-of taxes to the Metropolitan Government and the
surrounding counties. Such payments were calculated based on a prescribed formula that took into consideration
utility plant value and the average of the Board’s last three years’ operating margin. The increase in payments in-lieuof taxes was the result of increases in tax rates coupled with increased investment in the utility plant.
The following table shows the composition of the operating expenses of the Board by major classifications of
expense for the last three years:
MA JOR CL A SSIFIC ATIONS OF EXPENSE ($000 OMITTED)
FISCAL

FISCAL

$68,600

$63,371

8.3%

$59,316

6.8%

42,613

37,699

13.0%

42,958

(12.2%)

6,951

9,561

(27.3%)

9,602

(0.4%)

10,571

9,990

5.80%

10,632

(6.0%)

MATERIALS

2,128

2,242

(5.1%)

3,021

(25.8%)

TRANSPORTATION

4,539

4,488

1.1%

4,683

(4.2%)

SECURITY/POLICE

1,401

1,167

20.1%

1,141

2.3%

999

959

4.2%

969

(1.0%)

PROFESSIONAL FEES

1,061

925

14.7%

1,252

(26.1%)

INSURANCE PREMIUMS

1,283

1,184

8.4%

1,191

(0.6%)

OTHER

9,366

13,680

(31.5%)

15,984

(14.4%)

$149,512

$145,266

2.9%

$150,749

(3.6%)

DESCRIPTION
LABOR
BENEFITS
TREE-TRIMMING
OUTSIDE SERVICES

RENTALS

		

2015

2014

INCREASE
(DECREASE)

FISCAL

2013

INCREASE
(DECREASE)

31

management’s discussion & analysis continued

The Board’s total operating expenses increased 2.9 percent from June 30, 2014 to June 30, 2015. Labor for fiscal
year 2015 totaled $68.6 million, which remained stable compared to 2014 due to increases in cost of living
adjustments, merit adjustments, and step increases, offset by a decrease in filled positions. Benefits increased
primarily due to the accounting for investment activity prescribed by GASB 68. Tree trimming decreased as a
result of unanticipated contractor delays in 2015. Outside Services increased primarily due to information technology, $0.7 million in 2015. Materials were lower primarily due to fewer distribution related materials required in
2015. Transportation costs increased due to increased repairs and maintenance costs in Fleet. Security/Police
increased due to additional coverage for North Service Center and Training Facility. Rentals remained stable
from 2014 to 2015. Insurance premiums have increased from 2014 due to market increases. Professional fees
increased due to increases in legal and audit fees in 2015. The Other category contains a wide array of smaller
expense types. There were no major fluctuation in these categories.
C APITAL A SSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTR ATION
The Board’s transmission and distribution facilities serve more than 700 square miles and include the Metropolitan
Government of Nashville and Davidson County, Tennessee. The Board also serves portions of the adjacent counties
of Cheatham, Rutherford, Robertson, Sumner, Wilson, and Williamson. Such facilities require significant annual
capital and maintenance expenditures. The Board’s target is to have the capital expenditures funded equally
from cash flows from operations and proceeds from tax-exempt bonds. The Board’s investment in utility plant,
less accumulated depreciation, at June 30, 2015 was $919.9 million compared to $901.7 million at June 30, 2014.
Major projects during fiscal year 2015 included new business installations, $15.2 million; $8.2 million in substation improvements including commissioning of Trinity Hills substation; $7.7 million for the North Service Center;
and $7.4 million in capital maintenance.
In 2014, NES entered into an agreement with a general contractor for the construction of its new North Service
and Training Center. The contract, which is set to expire on October 31, 2015, has a not to exceed value of $12.5
million. As of June 30, 2015, $10.1 million has been expended.
The Board has outstanding bonds payable of $630.6 million at June 30, 2015 compared to $652.0 million at
June 30, 2014. The decrease is due to debt payments, accretion, and amortization of $33.7 million, and partial
refunding of 2008 Series A and 2008 Series B Bonds of $124.0 million principal and associated premiums; offset
by the issuance of 2015 Electric Service Revenue Refunding Series A Bonds of $136.3 million principal and
associated premiums. The Board completed a refunding of significantly all of the 2008 Series A and 2008 Series
B bonds for $78.9 million and $42.4 million, respectively, in conjunction with the issuance of the 2015 Electric
Service Revenue Refunding Series A Bonds with an aggregate principal balance of $112.9 million, and with
associated premiums of $23.4 million. More details about the Board’s capital assets and debt can be found in
the notes to the financial statements.
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management’s discussion & analysis continued

In August 2015, the Board approved an agreement between the Employee Association of NES and management
for a period of five years, effective July 1, 2015. The agreement amended the Nashville Electric Service Retirement
Annuity and Survivors Plan with respect to early retirement options. This change increased the total pension liability at that time by approximately $6.0 million. The agreement also increased non-supervisory pay by 3.0 percent
in fiscal 2016.
Respectfully submitted,

Teresa Broyles-Aplin
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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statements of net position ($ 0 0 0 omit ted)
june 30, 2015 & 2014

2015

2014

A SSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
CURRENT ASSETS:		
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

$ 303,851

$ 267,994

136,613

144,325

MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES

19,483

19,723

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

6,912

5,445

466,859

437,487

	CUSTOMER AND OTHER ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, LESS ALLOWANCE
FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS OF $469 AND $1,819 RESPECTIVELY

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

INVESTMENT OF RESTRICTED FUNDS:		
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
OTHER INVESTMENTS
TOTAL INVESTMENT OF RESTRICTED FUNDS

30,729

141,667

114,911

41,134

145,640

182,801

UTILITY PLANT:		
ELECTRIC PLANT, AT COST

1,519,141

1,473,175

LESS: ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

(599,257)

(571,479)

919,884

901,696

3,356

2,804

1,535,739

1,524,788

TOTAL UTILITY PLANT, NET
OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:		
DEFERRED AMOUNT ON REFUNDING OF DEBT
DIFFERENCE BETWEEN PROJECTED AND ACTUAL PENSION EXPERIENCE
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTLFOWS OF RESOURCES
See notes to financial statements.
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19,393

9,831

6,008

5,369

25,401

15,200

1,561,140

1,539,988

statements of net position ($ 0 0 0 omit ted) continued
june 30, 2015 & 2014

2015

2014

LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
CURRENT LIABILITIES:		
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE FOR PURCHASED POWER

160,455

165,262

OTHER ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED EXPENSES

25,463

26,899

CUSTOMER DEPOSITS

14,440

13,333

200,358

205,494

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES PAYABLE FROM RESTRICTED ASSETS:		
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS PAYABLE

2,894

1,372

ACCRUED INTEREST PAYABLE

3,159

2,823

31,230

29,700

37,283

33,895

LONG-TERM DEBT, LESS CURRENT PORTION

599,342

622,309

NET PENSION LIABILITY

165,435

148,956

8,912

12,994

1,011,330

1,023,648

CURRENT PORTION OF LONG-TERM DEBT
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES PAYABLE FROM RESTRICTED ASSETS

OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES		
DIFFERENCE BETWEEN PROJECTED AND ACTUAL PENSION EARNINGS
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

6,945

29,288

6,945

29,288

NET POSITION		
NET INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS

384,058

375,144

RESTRICTED, NET

63,730

62,979

UNRESTRICTED

95,077

48,929

542,865

487,052

$1,561,140

$1,539,988

TOTAL NET POSITION
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS, AND NET POSITION
See notes to financial statements.
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statements of revenues,
expenses & changes in net position ($ 0 0 0 omit ted)
years ended june 30, 2015 & 2014
2015

2014

OPERATING REVENUES:		
RESIDENTIAL

$ 530,169

$ 530,113

676,002

672,954

STREET AND HIGHWAY LIGHTING

19,996

19,726

OTHER

20,465

18,641

1,246,632

1,241,434

PURCHASED POWER

929,726

926,575

OPERATING REVENUES, NET, LESS PURCHASED POWER

316,906

314,859

COMMERCIAL AND INDUSTRIAL

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES, NET

OPERATING EXPENSES:		
DISTRIBUTION

59,496

61,889

CUSTOMER ACCOUNTS

20,176

20,302

1,690

1,206

ADMINISTRATIVE AND GENERAL

68,150

61,870

TAX EQUIVALENTS

33,759

32,641

DEPRECIATION

53,317

49,106

236,588

227,014

80,318

87,845

CUSTOMER SERVICE AND INFORMATION

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES
OPERATING INCOME

NON-OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSE):		
INTEREST INCOME
INTEREST EXPENSE, NET
TOTAL NON-OPERATING EXPENSE
NET INCREASE IN NET POSITION
NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS PREVIOUSLY STATED
CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF AN ACCOUNTING CHANGE
NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR
NET POSITION, END OF YEAR
See notes to financial statements.
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995

295

(25,500)

(22,236)

(24,505)

(21,941)

55,813

65,904

487,052

600,254

—

(179,106)

487,052

421,148

$ 542,865

$ 487,052

statements of cash flows ($ 0 0 0 omit ted)
years ended june 30, 2015 & 2014
2015
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:		
RECEIPTS FROM CUSTOMERS
PAYMENTS TO SUPPLIERS FOR GOODS AND SERVICES

2014

$ 1,254,943 $ 1,235,814
(1,037,471)

(1,017,075)

PAYMENTS TO EMPLOYEES

(55,705)

(53,298)

PAYMENTS FOR TAX EQUIVALENTS

(32,937)

(31,885)

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

128,830

133,556

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:		
PROCEEDS FROM SALE OF REVENUE BONDS
PAYMENT ON DEFEASED DEBT
DEFERRED OUTFLOW DEBT DEFEASANCE
NET CASH PROVIDED BY NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

136,300

—

(121,265)

—

(14,337)

—

698

—

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:		
ACQUISITION AND CONSTRUCTION OF UTILITY PLANT

(68,725)

(50,300)

(9,942)

(14,521)

746

2,224

CONTRIBUTIONS IN AID OF CONSTRUCTION

3,451

488

PRINCIPAL PAYMENTS ON REVENUE BONDS

(29,700)

(26,270)

INTEREST PAYMENTS ON REVENUE BONDS

(27,132)

(23,311)

—

125,588

(131,302)

13,898

UTILITY PLANT REMOVAL COSTS
SALVAGE RECEIVED FROM UTILITY PLANT RETIREMENTS

PROCEEDS FROM SALE OF REVENUE BONDS
	NET CASH (USED IN) PROVIDED BY CAPITAL
AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:		
PURCHASES OF INVESTMENT SECURITIES

(171,054)

(91,259)

97,274

75,330

473

309

(73,307)

(15,620)

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(75,081)

131,834

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

409,661

277,827

$ 334,580

$ 409,661

PROCEEDS FROM SALES AND MATURITIES OF INVESTMENT SECURITIES
INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR
See notes to financial statements.
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statements of cash flows ($ 000 omitted) continued
years ended june 30, 2015 & 2014

2015
2014
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET
CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:		
OPERATING INCOME

$ 80,318

$ 87,845

ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE OPERATING INCOME
TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:		
DEPRECIATION

53,317

50,333

PENSION

19,242

16,583

2,836

2,713

ACCRUAL FOR UNCOLLECTIBLE ACCOUNTS

CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES:		
(INCREASE) DECREASE IN CUSTOMER AND OTHER ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

4,876

(10,597)

240

596

(1,208)

(2,631)

(552)

(539)

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN ACCOUNTS PAYABLE FOR PURCHASED POWER

(4,807)

11,107

DECREASE IN OTHER ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED EXPENSES

(1,436)

(274)

1,107

94

643

1,139

(25,746)

(22,813)

$ 128,830

$ 133,556

DECREASE IN MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES
INCREASE IN OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
DECREASE IN OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

INCREASE IN CUSTOMER DEPOSITS
INCREASE IN OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
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statements of cash flows ($ 000 omitted) continued
years ended june 30, 2015 & 2014

NON-CASH OPERATING ACTIVITIES, CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Accounts payable associated with the acquisition and construction of utility plant was $2.9 million in 2015 and
$1.4 million in 2014.
Allowances for funds used during constructions (AFUDC), approximates NES’ current weighted average cost
of debt. AFUDC was capitalized as a component of the cost of utility plant. AFUDC was $0.6 million in 2015 and
$0.2 million in 2014.
During 2015 and 2014, NES charged $17.3 million and $32.7 million, respectively, to accumulated depreciation
representing the cost of retired utility plant.
During 2015 and 2014, $5.5 million and $3.9 million, respectively, were credited to interest expense for amortization of
net bond premiums and discounts in each year. NES expensed debt issuance costs of $0.9 million in 2015 and 2014.
During 2015, the 2015 Series A Bonds were issued to refund significantly all of the 2008 Series A and 2008 Series
B bonds for $78.9 million and $42.4 million. The advance refunding resulted in a deferred outflow of $14.3 million
due to the difference between the reacquisition price and net carrying amount of the debt and financing expense
of $1.0 million.
During 2014, NES and the Metropolitan Government of Nashville reached an agreement in which the Music City
Convention Authority receivable of $2.8 million was exchanged for land that was of a similar value.
During 2014, $1.0 million of Distribution assets were transferred back to Material and Supplies.
See notes to financial statements.
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1. summar y of significant accounting policies
The Electric Power Board of the Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County (the “Board”) was established in 1939 when the City of Nashville purchased certain properties of the Tennessee Electric Power Company for
the purpose of exercising control and jurisdiction over the electric distribution system. In conducting the operations
of the electric distribution system, the Board does business as Nashville Electric Service (“NES”). NES is a component
unit of The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County, Tennessee (the “Metropolitan Government”),
and is operated by a five-member board appointed by the Mayor and confirmed by the Council of the Metropolitan
Government. Members of NES serve five-year staggered terms without compensation. In accordance with the Charter
of the Metropolitan Government, NES exercises exclusive control and management, except NES must obtain the
approval of the Council before issuing revenue bonds. The Board establishes rates. Such rates are approved by the
Tennessee Valley Authority (“TVA”). The Metropolitan Government does not assume liability for the financial obligations of NES. In addition, the assets of NES (our infrastructure or “the Electric System”) cannot be encumbered to
satisfy obligations of the Metropolitan Government. NES appoints a chief executive officer, who is charged with the
responsibility for the day-to-day operations, including the hiring of employees.
The financial statements of NES have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America. NES maintains its accounts in accordance with the Uniform System of Accounts
prescribed by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission using the economic measurement focus and the accrual
basis of accounting. NES is not subject to the jurisdiction of federal or state energy regulatory commissions.
RECENTLY ADOPTED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS
The Company adopted GASB 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, during fiscal 2015. The purpose
of this standard is to improve the transparency of pension obligations and related funding status by presenting the
net pension liability on the statement of net assets of the plan sponsor. This standard also changed how funding is
recognized, and changed the elements of pension expense. However, the funding requirements were not impacted
by this standard; only the manner in which the funding is recognized in the financial statements.
The standard required retroactive application to the most recent preceding year for comparative financial
statements. NES recorded the effects of adopting GASB 68 beginning in July of 2013 through the recognition of
a net pension liability with a corresponding offset to unrestricted net position of $179.1 million. Accordingly, all
comparative periods for fiscal year 2015 and fiscal year 2014 reflect results with this new accounting standard.
The most significant impact of the adoption of this standard is the recognition of the net pension liability of
$165.4 million and $149.0 million at June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The 2014 Change in Net Position increased
approximately $5.0 million from amounts previously reported.
Other effects of the adoption of GASB 68 included the following:
The accounting for pension activity under the new standard results in deferred outflows (delayed recognition of
unfavorable investment income changes or unfavorable actuarial changes) and deferred inflows (delayed recognition
of favorable investment income changes or favorable actuarial changes). All deferred investment income changes
(whether favorable or unfavorable) are combined together for a net balance sheet presentation. These changes
will be amortized into net pension expense over five years for investment related deferrals, and approximately
eight years for actuarially determined deferrals beginning in the year that the inflow or outflow is initially recognized.
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1. summar y of significant accounting policies continued

The administrative and general expenses (and pension expense) decreased by $5.0 million (as compared to the
prior accounting method) for the twelve months ended June 30, 2014 due to the adoption of GASB 68.
The significant accounting policies followed by NES are outlined below.
USE OF ESTIMATES
Estimates used in the preparation of financial statements are based on management’s best judgments. The most
significant estimates relate to useful lives of capital assets, employee benefit plan obligations, and unreported
medical claims. These estimates may be adjusted as information that is more current becomes available.
C A SH AND C A SH EQUIVALENTS
For purposes of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash, commercial paper, U.S.
Treasury Bills and certificates of deposit with an original maturity of three months or less.
RESTRICTED A SSETS
Restricted assets of NES represent bond proceeds designated for construction and other monies required to be
restricted for debt service. As of June 30, 2015 and 2014, amounts restricted for debt service were $63.7 million and
$62.9 million, respectively. NES releases capital debt funds quarterly based on expected draws for that quarter. As
of June 30, 2015 and 2014, amounts restricted for construction were $78.8 million and $117.0 million, respectively.
NES generally makes disbursements for all capital projects out of its unrestricted operating funds. When restricted
resources for capital projects exist, NES reimburses the unrestricted operating fund from the restricted resources
according to a quarterly funding schedule. At that time such funds are considered applied to capital projects.
The funding release schedule is based on expected capital expenditures which are typically over a three year
period or may be based upon specific bond terms.
UTILIT Y PL ANT
Electric plant is stated at original cost. Such cost includes applicable overhead such as general and administrative
costs, depreciation of vehicles used in the construction process, and payroll and related costs such as pensions, taxes
and other fringe benefits related to plant construction. Interest cost incurred during the period of construction of a
certain plant is capitalized.
When plant assets are disposed of at salvage value, NES charges the amount to accumulated depreciation.
Costs of depreciable retired utility plant, plus removal costs, less salvage, are charged to accumulated
depreciation. Depreciation is provided at rates that are designed to amortize the cost of a depreciable plant
(including estimated removal costs) over the estimated useful lives ranging from 7 to 50 years.

41

1. summar y of significant accounting policies continued

The composite straight-line rates expressed as a percentage of average depreciable plant were as follows for
June 30, 2015 and 2014:
2015

2014

DISTRIBUTION PLANT, 8 TO 40 YEARS

3.5%

3.5%

STRUCTURE AND IMPROVEMENTS, 40 TO 50 YEARS

2.1%

2.1%

10.9%

5.0%

TRANSPORTATION EQUIPMENT, 8 TO 10 YEARS

6.3%

6.1%

OTHER EQUIPMENT, 8 TO 33.3 YEARS

6.6%

5.3%

OFFICE FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT, 7.1 TO 16.7 YEARS

Maintenance and repairs, including the cost of renewals of minor items of property, are charged to maintenance
expense accounts. Replacements of property are charged to utility plant accounts.
CONTRIBUTIONS IN AID OF CONSTRUCTION (CIAC)
Payments are received from customers and TVA for construction costs primarily relating to the expansion or
improvement of the capabilities of the Electric System. FERC guidelines are followed in recording CIAC, which
direct the reduction of utility plant assets by the amount of contributions received toward the construction of
utility plant. CIAC earned and recovered in the plant costs was $8.0 million in 2015 and $2.2 million in 2014.
INVESTMENTS OF RESTRICTED FUNDS
Investments and cash equivalents (including restricted assets) consist primarily of short-term U.S. Government
securities or mortgage-backed securities from agencies chartered by Congress and cash equivalents, which are
investments with an original maturity of three months or less, respectively. In accordance with GASB Statement
No. 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and External Investment Pools, investments
are reflected at their fair value except those investments that have a remaining maturity at the time of purchase
of one year or less and certificates of deposit, which are reflected at amortized cost and cost, respectively.
MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES
Materials and supplies are stated at weighted average cost, which approximates actual cost.
COMPENSATED ABSENCES
NES recognizes a liability for employees’ accumulated vacation days. The general policy of NES permits the
accumulation, within certain limitations, of unused vacation days. This amount is included in other accounts
payable and accrued expenses in the Statement of Net Position.
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1. summar y of significant accounting policies continued

NET POSITION
Net position is reported in three components on the Statement of Net Position: Net investment in capital assets,
Restricted, and Unrestricted. The net investment in capital assets is the portion of net position that consists of
capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, plus deferred outflows of resources reduced by the proceeds
used from outstanding capital debt and construction contracts payable that are attributable to the acquisition,
construction, or improvement of those assets. The Restricted component of net position consists of restricted
assets reduced by related liabilities and deferred inflows of resources related to those assets. A net position is
reported as restricted when constraints are externally imposed on the use of net position. As of June 30, 2015,
the Restricted Net position consisted of Cash of $30.7 million for capital projects ($1.5 million) and debt service
($29.2 million) and of investments of $114.9 million for capital projects ($77.2 million) and debt service ($37.7 million).
Unrestricted is the share of net position that is neither restricted nor invested in capital assets.
RE VENUES
Revenues for residential, commercial and industrial customers are recognized from meters read on a monthly
cycle basis. Service that has been rendered from the latest date of each meter-reading cycle to month end is
estimated and accrued as unbilled revenue receivable. As of June 30, 2015 and 2014, such unbilled revenues were
$48.7 million and $49.7 million, respectively. In addition to a base rate, NES collects and recognizes a variable
fuel cost adjustment based upon changing fuel and purchased power costs, which is a pass-through from TVA.
NES also collects sales tax from a majority of its commercial customers. Revenues are presented net of sales
tax and net of allowances for uncollectible accounts of $2.8 million and $2.7 million for the years ended June 30,
2015 and 2014, respectively. Significantly, all uncollectible accounts are from residential sales.
PURCHA SED POWER
NES purchases electric power from the TVA. TVA’s rate structure is a wholesale Time of Use rate structure, which
includes a variable fuel charge component. Retail customers are billed under a seasonal rate structure. Wholesale
rates are billed based on energy use and demand charges.
A SSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS
Asset retirement obligations are periodically reviewed and management has concluded that, at present, NES
does not have any such asset retirement obligations.
OPER ATING AND NON- OPER ATING RE VENUES AND EXPENSES
Operating revenues include the sale of power and rental of electric property less accruals for uncollectible accounts.
Operating expenses include direct and indirect costs to operate and maintain the electric distribution system,
including purchased power, fuel, depreciation, customer accounts, tax equivalents, and general and administrative costs. Non-operating revenues and expenses consist of interest income and expense and gains or losses
on the disposal of certain assets.
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1. summar y of significant accounting policies continued

INCOME TA XES
NES is not subject to federal or state income taxes. While NES is not subject to property tax, NES pays tax equivalents
in-lieu-of taxes to the Metropolitan Government and surrounding counties. Such payments are calculated based
on a prescribed formula that takes into consideration utility plant value and the average of the Board’s last three
years’ operating margin, which is the operating revenues, net, less purchased power expenses.
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Fair value of financial instruments has been determined by NES using available market information. The carrying
amounts of cash and short-term investments, investments of special funds, accounts receivable and accounts
payable are a reasonable estimate of their fair value. The fair value of NES’ long-term debt is estimated to be $643.8
million and $684.0 million at June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively, based on pricing models derived from trading
activity of similar long-term municipal debt, which are a reasonable estimate of their fair value. However, judgment
is required in interpreting market data to develop the estimates of fair value. Accordingly, the fair values of debt are
not necessarily indicative of the amounts that NES could realize in a current market exchange.
RECL A SSIFIC ATIONS
To achieve conformity and comparability, the Board may reclassify certain amounts in prior year financial
statements where applicable.
During 2015, the Board determined that the Net Position section of the Combined Statements of Net Position
in the 2014 financial statements should be revised from their previous presentation. As of June 30, 2014 the Net
investment in capital assets category had been decreased by $117.0 million and Unrestricted net position had
been increased by $117.0 million as it reflected all financings as replenishment of operating funds used for capital
expenditures. The current year presentation of these components of Net Position in the 2014 financial statements
have been revised and corrected by $117.0 million from previously reported amounts to only reflect as a reduction
in the net investment in capital assets those debt proceeds which have been specifically expended on the capital
assets at that date. Management does not believe that this revision is material to the 2014 financial statements.
RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS
In February 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application. This Statement defined
fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The Statement also provides guidance for determining
a fair value measurement for financial reporting purposes. This Statement also provides guidance for applying
fair value to certain investments and disclosures related to all fair value measurements. The provisions for Statement No. 72 are effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2015. The Board does not expect this standard will have
any impact on net position. The main impact of this standard will be expanded disclosures around the risk characteristics of investments held by the Board. The Board has investments related to bond retirements and capital projects.
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1. summar y of significant accounting policies continued

The Board also has investments in the Nashville Electric Service Retirement Annuity and Survivors Plan, and in
the Nashville Electric Service Other Post-Employment Benefit (OPEB) Plan. All such investments have readily
available market information regarding the fair value of such investments.
In June 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits
Other Than Pensions, (GASB 75) which requires governments to report the net liability on the face of the financial
statements for the OPEB that they provide. This statement also will require the presentation of more extensive
note disclosures and required supplementary information about their OPEB liabilities and investments. The
provisions in GASB 75 are effective for financial statements for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2017. The
main impact of this standard, similar to the effects of GASB 68, will be the presentation of the Post Employment
Benefit Obligation related to NES’ retiree health plan on the statement of Net Position net of the fair value of
investments in that plan. The Board is evaluating the effects of the adoption of GASB 75 and expects to record a
net liability of approximately $170 million. Additionally, disclosures about the postemployment plan will change.
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2.utilit y plant & accumulated depreciation
UTILIT Y PL ANT ACTIVIT Y FOR THE YE ARS ENDED
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 WA S A S FOLLOWS ($000 OMITTED):
BALANCE		
ADDITIONS

June 30, 2014
DISTRIBUTION PLANT

TRANSFERS &
BALANCE
RETIREMENTS June 30, 2015

$ 1,292,528

$ 54,409

$ (13,694)

$ 1,333,243

3,901

—

—

3,901

STRUCTURES AND IMPROVEMENTS

52,239

681

—

52,920

OFFICE FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT

28,047

3,803

(2,045)

29,805

7,411

95

(96)

7,410

OTHER EQUIPMENT

41,904

4,758

(1,416)

45,246

CONSTRUCTION WORK-IN-PROGRESS (A)

47,145

—

(529)

46,616

$ 1,473,175

$ 63,746

$ (17,780)

$ 1,519,141

LAND AND LAND RIGHTS

TRANSPORTATION EQUIPMENT

		

BALANCE		
ADDITIONS

June 30, 2013
DISTRIBUTION PLANT

TRANSFERS &
BALANCE
RETIREMENTS June 30, 2014

$ 1,252,508

$ 54,413

$ (14,393)

$ 1,292,528

1,139

2,762

—

3,901

STRUCTURES AND IMPROVEMENTS

49,401

2,976

(138)

52,239

OFFICE FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT

40,292

1,523

(13,768)

28,047

6,969

1,502

(1,060)

7,411

OTHER EQUIPMENT

40,344

6,093

(4,533)

41,904

CONSTRUCTION WORK-IN-PROGRESS (A)

65,063

—

(17,918)

47,145

$ 1,455,716

$ 69,269

$ (51,810)

$ 1,473,175

LAND AND LAND RIGHTS

TRANSPORTATION EQUIPMENT

		

(a) Represents the net activity to the construction work-in-progress account after transfers to plant accounts.
Construction work-in-progress was reduced by $1.2 million for the adoption of GASB 68 as a result of adjustments to allocated overhead.
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THE REL ATED ACTIVIT Y FOR ACCUMUL ATED DEPRECIATION
FOR THE YE ARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 WA S A S FOLLOWS ($000 OMITTED):
BALANCE		ORIGINAL
COST OF		BALANCE
June 30, 2014 PROVISION

DISTRIBUTION
PLANT
STRUCTURES AND
IMPROVEMENTS

COST

REMOVAL

SALVAGE

June 30, 2015

$ 505,319

$46,623

$ (13,692)

$ (9,942)

$ 669

$ 528,977

19,823

1,110

—

—

—

20,933

OFFICE FURNITURE
AND EQUIPMENT
21,381
3,145
(2,045)
—
—
22,481		
								
TRANSPORTATION
EQUIPMENT
2,044
469
(97)
—
13
2,429
OTHER EQUIPMENT
		

22,912

2,877

(1,416)

—

64

24,437

$ 571,479

$ 54,224

$ (17,250)

$ (9,942)

$ 746

$ 599,257

BALANCE		ORIGINAL
June 30, 2014 PROVISION
COST

DISTRIBUTION
PLANT

COST OF		BALANCE
REMOVAL
SALVAGE June 30, 2015

$ 486,878

$ 45,091

$ (13,182)

$ (14,521)

$ 1,053

$ 505,319

STRUCTURES AND
IMPROVEMENTS

18,897

1,056

(130)

—

—

19,823

OFFICE FURNITURE
AND EQUIPMENT

33,344

1,715

(13,678)

—

—

21,381

TRANSPORTATION
EQUIPMENT

2,497

441

(1,050)

—

156

2,044

OTHER EQUIPMENT

23,780

2,757

(4,640)

-

1,015

22,912

$ 565,396

$ 51,060

$ (32,680)

$ (14,521)

$ 2,224

$ 571,479

		

Depreciation is either capitalized as a cost of utility plant for equipment used in the construction of assets
or reported as depreciation expense in the statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position.
Depreciation capitalized was $0.9 million and $0.7 million in 2015 and 2014, respectively.
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3.cash & investments
C A SH AND INVESTMENTS CONSIST OF THE FOLLOWING ($000 OMITTED):
2015
						
WEIGHTED
						
AVERAGE
			
BOND
SPECIAL		 MATURITY
CASH
FUNDS CONSTRUCTION TOTAL
(YEARS)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

$ 303,851

$ 29,217

$ 1,512

$ 334,580

—

U.S. TREASURY INVESTMENTS

—

—

9,857

9,857

1.53

SECURITIES FROM AGENCIES
CHARTERED BY CONGRESS

—

37,672

67,382

105,054

0.97

$ 303,851

$ 66,889

$ 78,751

$ 449,491

		

2014
						
WEIGHTED
						
AVERAGE
			
BOND
SPECIAL		 MATURITY
CASH
FUNDS CONSTRUCTION TOTAL
(YEARS)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
SECURITIES FROM AGENCIES
CHARTERED BY CONGRESS
		

$ 267,994

$ 24,667

$ 117,000

$ 409,661

—

—

41,134

—

41,134

1.63

$ 267,994

$ 65,801

$ 117,000

$ 450,795

There were $114.9 million of investments reported at fair value in U.S. Treasury Investments and Securities from
Agencies Chartered by Congress held at June 30, 2015. Investments of $41.1 million in Securities from Agencies
Chartered by Congress are reported at fair value at June 30, 2014. Standard & Poor’s rated such investments AA+
at June 30, 2015.
CUSTODIAL CREDIT RISK
As of June 30, 2015 and 2014, NES’ cash and cash equivalents held by financial institutions was $334.5 million
and $409.7 million, respectively. Bank balances for such accounts totaled $256.0 million and $220.2 million,
respectively. Deposits in financial institutions are required by State of Tennessee (“State”) statute to be secured
and collateralized by the institutions. The collateral must meet certain requirements and have a total minimum
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market value of 105.0 percent of the value of the deposits placed in the institutions less, the amount protected
by federal depository insurance. Collateral requirements are not applicable for financial institutions that
participate in the State’s collateral pool but rather are set by the State as described below. As of June 30, 2015
and 2014, all of NES’ deposits were held by financial institutions, which participate in the bank collateral pool
administered by the State Treasurer. Participating banks determine the aggregated balance of their public-fund
accounts for the Metropolitan Government. The amount of collateral required to secure these public deposits
is a certain percentage set by the State, depending on the financial institution, and must be at least that
percentage of the average daily balance of public deposits held. Collected securities required to be pledged by
the participating banks to protect their public-fund accounts are pledged to the State Treasurer on behalf of the
bank collateral pool. The securities pledged to protect these accounts are pledged in the aggregate rather than
against each individual account. The members of the pool may be required by agreement to pay an assessment
to cover any deficiency. Under this additional assessment agreement, public-fund accounts covered by the pool
are considered to be insured for purposes of credit risk disclosure.
CREDIT RISK
NES is authorized to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S. governmental agencies, securities from
agencies chartered by Congress, certificates of deposit, commercial paper rated A1 or equivalent and bonds of
the State of Tennessee. Each of these investments is registered or held by NES or its agent in NES name.
CONCENTR ATION OF CREDIT RISK
NES has a policy prohibiting investment of greater than $5.0 million or 20.0 percent of the total investment portfolio
in any one issue, except for the U.S. Government or any of its agencies. In 2015, 91.0 percent of NES’ investments
were held in Securities from Agencies Chartered by Congress. In 2014, 100.0 percent of NES’ investments were in
Securities from Agencies Chartered by Congress.
INTEREST R ATE RISK
NES restricts its investments other than for construction, debt service, and pensions to those with maturities
less than two years from the date of settlement as a means of managing exposure to fair value losses arising
from changes in interest rates.
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4.long -term debt
LONG -TERM DEBT FOR THE YE AR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015, IS A S FOLLOWS ($000 OMITTED):
			ADDITIONS/
BALANCE
DEDUCTIONS/ AMORTIZATION/ BALANCE
June 30, 2014 REPAYMENTS ACCRETION June 30, 2015

ELECTRIC SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS,
1998 Series A, bear interest at rates from
5.125% to 5.40%, maturing through
May 15, 2023, interest paid semiannually.

28,910

—

1,582

30,492

18,224

(5,700)

(81)

12,443

94,269

(82,080)

(1,911)

10,278

73,231

(52,895)

(1,450)

18,886

101,793

(2,675)

(701)

98,417

148,608

(5,440)

(2,304)

140,864

61,403

—

(303)

61,100

125,571

(2,175)

(1,277)

122,119

ELECTRIC SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS,
1998 Series B, bear interest at rates from
4.75% to 5.50%, maturing through
May 15, 2017, interest paid semiannually.

ELECTRIC SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS,
2008 Series A, bear interest at rates from
3.25% to 5.00%, maturing through
May 15, 2033, interest paid semiannually.

ELECTRIC SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS,
2008 Series B, bear interest at rates from
3.25% to 5.00%, maturing through
May 15, 2023, interest paid semiannually.

ELECTRIC SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS,
2011 Series A, bear interest at rates from
1.50% to 5.00%, maturing through
May 15, 2036, interest paid semiannually.

ELECTRIC SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS,
2011 Series B, bear interest at rates from
2.00% to 5.00%, maturing through
May 15, 2026, interest paid semiannually.

ELECTRIC SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS,
2013 Series A, bear interest at rates from
3.25% to 5.00%, maturing through
May 15, 2029, interest paid semiannually.

ELECTRIC SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS,
2014 Series A, bear interest at rates from
2.00% to 5.00%, maturing through
May 15, 2039, interest paid semiannually.

ELECTRIC SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS,
2015 Series A, bear interest at 5.00%,
maturing through May 15, 2033,
interest paid semiannually.

		
LESS CURRENT PORTION
OF LONG-TERM DEBT
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—

—

135,973

135,973

652,009

$ (150,965)

$ 129,528

630,572

(29,700)			

(31,230)

$ 622,309			

$ 599,342

4. long -term debt continued

LONG -TERM DEBT FOR THE YE AR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014, IS A S FOLLOWS ($000 OMITTED):
			ADDITIONS/
BALANCE
DEDUCTIONS/ AMORTIZATION/ BALANCE
June 30, 2013 REPAYMENTS ACCRETION June 30, 2015

ELECTRIC SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS,
1998 Series A, bear interest at rates from
5.125% to 5.40%, maturing through
May 15, 2023, interest paid semiannually.

$27,410

—

1,500

28,910

23,728

(5,400)

(104)

18,224

12,126

(12,035)

(91)

—

97,518

(3,065)

(184)

94,269

74,828

(1,160)

(437)

73,231

105,132

(2,600)

(739)

101,793

152,944

(2,010)

(2,326)

148,608

61,699

-

(296)

61,403

ELECTRIC SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS,
1998 Series B, bear interest at rates from
4.75% to 5.50%, maturing through
May 15, 2017, interest paid semiannually.

ELECTRIC SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS,
2001 Series B, bear interest at 5.50%,
maturing through May 15, 2014,
interest paid semiannually.

ELECTRIC SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS,
2008 Series A, bear interest at rates from
3.25% to 5.00%, maturing through
May 15, 2033, interest paid semiannually.

ELECTRIC SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS,
2008 Series B, bear interest at rates from
3.25% to 5.00%, maturing through
May 15, 2023, interest paid semiannually.

ELECTRIC SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS,
2011 Series A, bear interest at rates from
1.50% to 5.00%, maturing through
May 15, 2036, interest paid semiannually.

ELECTRIC SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS,
2011 Series B, bear interest at rates from
2.00% to 5.00%, maturing through
May 15, 2026, interest paid semiannually.

ELECTRIC SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS,
2013 Series A, bear interest at rates from
3.25% to 5.00%, maturing through
May 15, 2029, interest paid semiannually.

ELECTRIC SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS,
2014 Series A, bear interest at rates from
2.00% to 5.00%, maturing through
May 15, 2039, interest paid semiannually.

		
LESS CURRENT PORTION
OF LONG-TERM DEBT
		

—

—

125,571

125,571

555,385

$ (26,270)

$ 122,894

652,009

(26,270)			

(29,700)

$ 529,115			

$ 622,309
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NES issues Revenue Bonds to provide funds primarily for capital improvements and for refundings of other
bonds. All bond issues are secured by a pledge and lien on the net revenues of NES on parity with the pledge
established by all bonds issued. Annual maturities on all long-term debt and related interest are as follows for
each of the next five fiscal years and in five-year increments thereafter ($000 omitted):
YEAR

PRINCIPAL

INTEREST

2016

$ 31,230

$ 25,709

2017

25,357

31,906

2018

24,593

31,208

2019

24,851

30,489

2020

33,550

21,528

2021-2025

170,715

82,373

2026-2030

128,600

44,759

2031-2035

75,075

19,134

2036-2039

34,110

3,848

		

548,081

$ 290,954

UNAMORTIZED PREMIUM

82,491		

TOTAL LONG-TERM DEBT

$ 630,572 		

On May 19, 2015, the Board issued $112.9 million in Electric System Revenue Refunding Bonds, 2015 Series A,
with an interest rate of 5.0 percent to advance refund $121.3 million of outstanding 2008 Series A and 2008
Series B bonds with interest rates of 4.25 percent to 5.0 percent and 4.75 percent to 5.0 percent, respectively.
The Board completed the advance refunding to reduce its total debt service payments over the next 18 years.
The advance refunding resulted in a $9.0 million savings in future interest expense. The refunded portion represents significantly all of the outstanding 2008 Series A Bonds and a significant portion of outstanding 2008
Series B bonds. The net proceeds of $135.6 million (after payment of $0.9 million in underwriting fees and other
issuance costs) plus an additional $0.3 million of monies transferred from the Debt Service Fund were placed in
escrow. These funds were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for all future debt
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service payments on the refunded portion of 2008 A and 2008 B Series Revenue Bonds. Funds deposited with
the escrow agent were used to purchase U.S. Treasury Obligations. As a result, $78.9 million of the 2008 Series A
and $42.4 million of 2008 Series B outstanding bonds are considered defeased and the liability for those bonds
have been removed from the Statements of Net Position as of June 30, 2015.
The advance refunding resulted in a difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of
the old debt of $14.3 million, which is reported as a component of deferred outflows on the Statements of Net
Position. The bonds, which have an aggregate principal amount of $112.9 million, were issued at a premium
totaling $23.4 million, and mature annually on May 15, 2019 through 2033.
On June 25, 2014, the Board closed on the sale of the Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County,
Tennessee, Electric System Revenue Bonds, 2014 Series A. The 2014 Series A Bonds were issued to finance the
costs of acquisition, expansion, and improvements to the Electric System in accordance with the Board’s capital
improvement plan, to fund the Debt Service Reserve Account established under the Bond Resolution, and to pay
costs of issuance of the bonds. The bonds have an aggregate principal amount of $109.1 million and include both
serial and term issuances. The 2014 Series A Bonds were issued at a premium totaling $16.5 million. Serial bonds
totaling $88.0 million mature annually on May 15, 2015 through 2036. A term bond totaling $21.1 million matures
May 15, 2039. At June 30, 2014, the Board has $117 million in proceeds from the 2014 Series A Bond issuance in cash
and cash equivalents that are reported as a component of Investment of Restricted Funds in the accompanying
Statements of Net Position. During fiscal year 2015, NES drew $39.0 million of funds from these bonds. During fiscal
year 2014, NES drew no funds from the System Revenue Bonds, 2014 Series A, for capital expenditures.
NES had a $25 million unsecured line-of-credit for fiscal year 2015 and 2014 to be used for purchased power in case
of a natural disaster. Borrowings under this line of credit bore a negotiated interest rate. There were no borrowings
under this line-of-credit in 2015 or 2014. The line-of-credit is renewable annually. The Company renewed the line of
credit effective July 1, 2015, with an expiration date of June 30, 2016.
All bonds are subject to customary covenants restricting the Board from, among other things: (1) issuing additional
bonds if certain financial ratios are not met, or (2) selling or leasing or otherwise disposing components of the
Electric System except in certain circumstances, and (3) reporting selected financial data annually. Additionally,
the Board is required, among other things, to: (1) charge and collect rates, fees and charges to meet the cash flow
requirements of the organization and (2) maintain the System including completing necessary improvements.
Events of default under the Bonds include, but are not limited to: (1) failure to make principal payments when due
and payable, (2) failure to make an installment of interest or sinking fund payment, (3) failure to make payment of an
Option bond when duly tendered, and (4) failure to report selected financial data annually. NES is not in violation of
any covenants at June 30, 2015.
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5. other non - current liabilities
NES’ other non-current liabilities consist primarily of TVA energy conservation program loans and customer or
TVA contributions in aid of construction. The following table shows the activity for the year ($000 omitted):
		REPAYMENTS/		
BALANCE
EARNED		
BALANCE
June 30, 2014 CONTRIBUTIONS ADDITIONS June 30, 2015

TVA ENERGY CONSERVATION LOANS

$ 2,476

$ (838)

$ 1,480

$ 3,118

CONTRIBUTIONS IN AID OF CONSTRUCTION

10,518

(8,288)

3,564

5,794

$ 12,994

$ (9,126)

$ 5,044

$ 8,912

		

		REPAYMENTS/		
BALANCE
EARNED		
BALANCE
June 30, 2013 CONTRIBUTIONS ADDITIONS June 30, 2014

TVA ENERGY CONSERVATION LOANS

$ 1,337

$ (647)

$ 1,786

2,476

CONTRIBUTIONS IN AID OF CONSTRUCTION

12,220

(4,492)

2,790

10,518

$ 13,557

$ (5,139)

$ 4,576

$ 12,994

		

NES is a fiscal intermediary for the TVA energy conservation programs whereby loans are made to NES’ customers
to be used in connection with TVA’s Residential Energy Services Program. Pursuant to the terms of an agreement
with TVA, the energy conservation loans made to NES’ customers are funded and guaranteed by TVA. NES acts
as a loan servicer and collects the principal and interest for these loans, which are then remitted to TVA’s lender.
Included in Other Non-Current Assets are receivables from NES customers equal to the aforementioned liabilities.
During 2014, NES repaid approximately $2.3 million of advance payments from TVA for certain technologies that
NES is no longer intending to pursue for the Smart Grid Pilot Program.
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6. pension plan
The Nashville Electric Service Retirement Annuity and Survivors’ Plan (the “Plan”) is a single employer defined
benefit pension plan administered by NES. The Plan provides retirement and survivors’ benefits to members
and beneficiaries. Cost-of-living adjustments are provided to members and beneficiaries annually. The Charter
of the Metropolitan Government assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to NES. The
Plan is not required to issue a separate financial report.
All full-time regular employees hired before June 30, 2012, and under age 65 were eligible to participate in the
Plan. Employees hired after June 30, 2012, are eligible to participate in the Nashville Electric Service Defined
Contribution Plan. The vesting provision of the Plan provides for five-year cliff vesting. NES employees who
retire at or after age 65 are entitled to annual retirement benefits payable monthly for life in an amount equal
to 2 percent of final average compensation multiplied by years in the Plan not in excess of 35 years.
Final average compensation is the average compensation in the 36 consecutive months in which compensation
is highest. Unused sick leave may be used to increase credited service and benefit percentage under certain
circumstances. Early retirement is an option beginning at age 55 with 15 years of credited service or at age 50
with 30 years of credited service with reduced monthly benefits.
If the participant has attained age 55, and his/her age plus service is 85 or greater, then there is no reduction
for early receipt of the benefit. However, a participant cannot use accumulated sick leave to increase effective
age to meet the requirements for this unreduced benefit. For a participant with 25 or more years of service, the
minimum pension benefit is $1,800 per month.
At April 1, 2015, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms of the Plan:
INACTIVE EMPLOYEES OR BENEFICIARIES CURRENTLY RECEIVING BENEFITS

833

INACTIVE EMPLOYEES ENTITLED TO BUT NOT YET RECEIVING BENEFITS

130

ACTIVE EMPLOYEES

831

		

1,794

The contribution requirements of NES are established and may be amended by NES. The Plan is currently
non-contributory. NES’ policy is to fund at least the minimum contribution for a 25-year funding level.
The current rate is 37.0 percent of annual covered payroll. NES contributed 100.0 percent and 99.6 percent of
the required contribution for the Plan years 2015 and 2014, respectively. In April of 2014, the State of Tennessee
passed an amendment to the Tennessee Code to establish funding requirements for public defined benefit
pension plans. The legislation requires funding by a plan sponsor of at least 100.0 percent of the actuarially
determined contribution, as defined in the legislation. The legislation requires that NES submit a funding policy
to the Comptroller by fiscal 2016. In 2015, in response to recent legislation, NES amended its funding policy for
the retirement plan. The plan will now be fully funded within the next 25 years.
The NES net pension liability was measured using the Entry Age actuarial cost method. The total pension liability
used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of April 1, 2015, which was
rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2015.
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The total pension liability was determined using certain actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included
in the measurement. The actuarial assumptions included (a) 7.5 percent investment rate of return and (b)
projected salary increases of 4.5 percent. Both (a) and (b) included an inflation component. The long-term rate
of return was determined using the Plan’s specific asset returns over the past ten years and historical long-term
returns of the broader U.S. markets. The assumptions include cost-of-living post-retirement benefit increases
equal to 2 percent per year. Mortality rates are based on the RP-2000 Healthy Combined Mortality Table. The
base mortality rates have been adjusted by applying the Projection Scale AA for seven years beyond the valuation
date to reflect mortality improvements.
The value of Plan assets is determined using the market value of investments.

INVESTMENTS ME A SURED AT FAIR VALUE ($000 OMITTED)
INVESTMENTS BY FAIR VALUE LEVEL

June 30, 2015

EQUITY SECURITIES
MUTUAL FUND – S&P 500 INDEX

$ 151,280

MUTUAL FUND – SMALL MID CAP

41,099

MUTUAL FUND – CORE FIXED INCOME

97,508

MUTUAL FUND – EMERGING MARKETS

14,535

MUTUAL FUND – HIGH YIELD BOND

30,722

MUTUAL FUND – WORLD EQUITY EX-US

91,257

TOTAL EQUITY SECURITIES
TOTAL INVESTMENTS MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE
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426,401
$ 426,401

6. pension plan continued

Investments characteristics are as follows:
S&P 500 INDEX FUND
The S&P 500 Index fund aims to produce investment results that correspond to the aggregate price and dividend
performance of the securities in the S&P 500 Index. The Fund invests substantially all of its assets in securities
that are members of the S&P 500 Index. The sub-advisor selects the Fund’s securities, but does not actively manage
the Fund in the traditional sense of trying to outperform its benchmark. Instead, the sub-advisor generally gives
the same weight to each stock as its weight in the S&P 500 Index.
SMALL MID C AP EQUIT Y FUND
The Small/Mid Cap Equity Fund aims to provide long-term capital appreciation. Under normal circumstances,
the Fund will invest primarily in U.S. small- and mid-cap stocks with market capitalization ranges similar to
those found in its benchmark, the Russell 2500 Index. The Fund’s sub-advisors may include both value and
growth managers.
CORE FIXED INCOME FUND
The Core Fixed Income Fund seeks current income consistent with the preservation of capital. The Fund will
invest at least 80.0% of its net assets in U.S. fixed-income securities. The Fund will invest primarily in investmentgrade U.S. corporate and government fixed-income securities, including mortgage- and asset-backed securities.
Investment-grade securities are those with an equivalent rating of BBB- or higher from a nationally recognized
credit rating agency. To a limited extent, the Fund may invest in unrated securities or securities rated below
investment grade.
EMERGING MARKETS DEBT FUND
The Emerging Markets Debt Fund seeks to maximize total return. It normally invests at least 80.0% of its assets
in fixed income securities, in both U.S. dollar and local currency denominated debt of government, governmentrelated, and corporate issuers in emerging market countries, as well as entities organized to restructure the debt
of those issuers. Although it is a non-diversified strategy, the Fund will invest in a number of countries and indu
stries in order to limit its exposure to a single emerging market economy.
HIGH YIELD BOND FUND
The High Yield Bond Fund seeks to provide total return by investing in riskier, higher-yielding fixed income
securities. Under normal circumstances, the Fund will invest at least 80.0% of its net assets in high-yield fixed
income securities, primarily in securities rated below investment grade (also known as junk bonds), including
corporate bonds and debentures, convertible and preferred securities, and zero coupon obligations. The
Fund’s securities are diversified as to issuers and industries. The Fund’s weighted average maturity may vary
but will generally not exceed ten years.
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WORLD EQUIT Y EX-US FUND
The World Equity Ex-US Fund seeks to provide long-term capital appreciation. Under normal circumstances, the
Fund will invest at least 80.0% of its net assets in equity securities of foreign countries. The Fund will invest in
securities of foreign issuers located in developed countries as well as emerging market countries, although no
more than 30.0% of its assets will be invested in equity securities of emerging market issuers. It is expected that
the Fund will invest at least 40.0% of its assets in companies domiciled in foreign countries.
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.5 percent. The undiscounted future payment
assumptions for the Plan are as follows:
PROJECTED SCHEDULE OF BENEFIT PAYMENTS ($000 omitted)
CALENDAR YEAR
NUMBER RETIRING

58

TOTAL PAYOUTS

2015-2019

172

$ 158,566

2020-2024

174

195,179

2025-2029

178

251,088

2030-2034

171

308,186

2035-2039

155

364,343

2040-2044

111

417,596

TOTAL PROJECTED BENEFIT PAYMENTS		

$ 1,694,958

6. pension plan continued

CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY ($000 omitted)
		

TOTAL
PENSION
LIABILITY
(a)

INCREASE (DECREASE)		
PLAN
FIDUCIARY
NET POSITION
(b)

NET
PENSION
LIABILITY
(a)–(b)

$417,779

$ 148,956

SERVICE COSTS

10,792		

10,792

INTEREST

41,399		

41,399

1,768		

1,768

BALANCE AT JUNE 30, 2014

$ 566,735

CHANGES FOR THE YEAR:

	DIFFERENCES BETWEEN EXPECTED
AND ACTUAL EXPERIENCE

CONTRIBUTIONS – EMPLOYER		

25,746

(25,746)

NET INVESTMENT INCOME		

12,561

(12, 561)

(28,687 )

(28,687)

—

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES		

(827)

827

NET CHANGE

25,272

8,793

16,479

$ 592,007

$426,572

$165,435

BENEFIT PAYMENTS / REFUNDS

BALANCE AT JUNE 30, 2015

The following presents the net pension liability of NES, calculated using the discount rate of 7.5 percent, as well
as what NES’ net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point
lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current rate.
1% DECREASE

CURRENT RATE

1% INCREASE

$240,433

$165,435

$102,389

(6.5%)

NET PENSION LIABILITY ($000 OMITTED)

(7.5%)

(8.5%)
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6. pension plan continued

For the year ended June 30, 2015, NES recognized pension expense of $18.4 million. At June 30, 2015, NES reported
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pension from the following sources:
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS
OF RESOURCES
 IFFERENCE BETWEEN EXPECTED
D
AND ACTUAL EXPERIENCE

DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES

$6,008

NET DIFFERENCE BETWEEN PROJECTED
AND ACTUAL EARNINGS ON PENSION
PLAN INVESTMENTS
		
$ 6,945
TOTAL		

$6,008

$ 6,945

Amounts reported as deferred outflows (inflows) of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension
expense as follows:
YEARS ENDING JUNE 30:
2016

$ (2,496)

2019

4,822

2017

(2,496)

2020

1,070

2018

(2,496)

THEREAFTER
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There are no deferred outflows that will be recognized as a reduction in the net pension liability.
In 1994, NES established a non-qualified Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (the “SERP”). The SERP was
limited to certain employees of NES. Benefits accrued at the rate of 5.0 percent of salary for each year of credited
service not to exceed 12 years and vests at the rate of 20.0 percent for each year of service, reduced by the percentage accrued and vested under NES’ qualified plan. Effective April 1, 2005, the Board merged the SERP with
the NES Retirement Annuity and Survivors’ Benefit Plan.
Adding the SERP benefits to the Plan increased the funding requirements for the Plan, but the amounts that
had accumulated in the SERP Trust were transferred to the Plan in order to offset those increased costs. Future
payments that would have been made into the SERP Trust will be directed into the Plan.
At the time of conversion, no benefits had been paid from the SERP. Any change in funding requirements is
reflected in the above schedule.
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7. deferred compensation & retirement plans
NES has a deferred compensation plan (the “457 Plan”) created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code (“IRC”)
Section 457. The 457 Plan, which is available to all full-time employees, permits employees to defer a portion of
their salary until future years. Employees may contribute up to the legal limit of their compensation to the 457 Plan,
with NES providing a matching contribution of up to 3.0 percent of compensation. The 457 Plan provides that
assets or income of the 457 Plan shall be used for the exclusive purpose of providing benefits for participants
and their beneficiaries or defraying reasonable expenses of administration of the 457 Plan. Since the assets of the
457 Plan are held in custodial and annuity accounts for the exclusive benefit of 457 Plan participants, the related
assets of the 457 Plan are not reflected on the Statements of Net Position. Employees contributed $3.6 million
for each of the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively. NES contributed $2.0 million to the 457 Plan
for the years ended June 30, 2015 and June 30, 2014.
Nashville Electric Service established a Defined Contribution Retirement Plan (the “DC Plan”) for all full-time
regular employees not vested in the Retirement Annuity and Survivors’ Plan or hired after July 1, 2012. This plan
is intended to be a defined contribution money purchase pension plan. Its purpose is to provide retirement
benefits to eligible employees. For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2015 and June 30, 2014, NES contributed
$0.4 million and $0.1 million, respectively, to the DC Plan.
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8. post- employment benefits
In addition to the pension benefits described in Note 6 and the deferred compensation benefits described in
Note 7, NES provides post-retirement medical, dental, and life insurance benefits to all employees who retire
from NES under the provisions of the qualified plan and supplemental executive retirement plan and have
completed a minimum of five years of service. Medical and dental benefits are also provided to their spouses.
As of June 30, 2015, approximately 613 retirees met the eligibility requirements. Expenses for these post-retirement benefits have previously been recognized as retirees report claims. Those incurred claims totaled $13.0
million and $11.0 million for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The total expenses that were
recognized were $16.5 million and $15.5 million during the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
The NES OPEB Plan is a single-employer defined benefit plan funded through an irrevocable trust that was established during the year ended June 30, 2008. The OPEB Plan is not required to issue a separate financial report.
NES’ annual OPEB cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution (ARC), an amount
actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement No. 45.
The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each
year and to amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a 30-year period beginning
April 1, 2009. The current rate is 22.1 percent of annual projected payroll. NES contributed 100.0 percent of the
required contribution for the 2015 and 2014 Plan years.
Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability
of events in the future. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required
contributions of NES are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and
new estimates are made about the future. The required schedule of funding progress presented below provides
multiyear trend information that shows whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing
over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.
Projections of benefits are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by NES and plan members)
and include the types of benefits in force at the valuation date and the pattern of sharing benefit costs between
NES and the plan members to that point. Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective and employ
methods and assumptions that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and
the actuarial value of assets. Significant methods and assumptions were as follows:
Actuarial valuation date: April 1, 2015
Actuarial cost method: Entry age, normal method
Amortization method: Level percentage of pay, open
Remaining amortization period: 30 years, closed
Asset valuation method: Adjust expected assets on the valuation date toward market value of assets by an amount
equal to one-third of the difference between expected and market asset values.
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8. post- employment benefits continued

The actuarial assumptions included (a) 7.5 percent investment rate of return and (b) projected salary increases of
4.5 percent. Both (a) and (b) included an inflation component. The assumptions include medical health care cost
trend rate increases equal to 5.0 percent per year and dental health care cost trend rates of 4.0 percent per year.
Schedule of employer contributions for the past three years are listed below ($000 omitted):
ANNUAL REQUIRED
CONTRIBUTION

PLAN YEAR

PERCENTAGE
CONTRIBUTED

2015		

$ 16,493

100%

2014		

15,222

100%

2013		

15,361

100%

Schedule of funding progress for the past three years is shown below ($000 omitted):
		
			
UNFUNDED
		
			
ACTUARIAL
		
ACTUARIAL UNFUNDED			 ACCRUED
		
ACCRUED
ACTUARIAL			LIABILITY AS
ACTUARIAL LIABILITY
ACCRUED			A PERCENT
ACTUARIAL
VALUATION DATE

VALUE OF
ASSETS

(AAL) ENTRY
AGE

LIABILITY
FUNDED
(UAAL)
PERCENTAGE

(a)

(b)

(b–a)

4/1/2015

$ 78,069

$ 249,211

$ 171,142

31.3%

$ 78,176

218.9%

4/1/2014

66,597

245,210

178,613

27.2%

76,241

234.3%

4/1/2013

56,486

227,605

171,119

24.8%

74,086

231.0%

(a/b)

COVERED
PAYROLL

OF COVERED
PAYROLL

(c)

(b–a)/c
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9. leases
Total rental expense entering into the determination of net position amounted to approximately $1.0 million in
both 2015 and 2014, respectively. Rental expense consists primarily of payments for facilities rental and leasing
arrangements for software licensing. NES leases these facilities and software under various cancelable lease
agreements. The majority of these leases are cancelable by either party within six to twelve months. Therefore,
future minimum rentals under these leases are $2.8 million in 2016.
Rental income is received under pole-attachment leases, which are accounted for as operating leases. Rental
income from telephone provider pole-attachments totaled $2.5 million for each of the years ended June 30,
2015 and 2014, respectively. Rental income from cable provider pole-attachments totaled $2.5 million at June
30, 2015, and $3.3 million at June 30, 2014. The net book value of the poles used in the rental activity was $131.8
million and $128.1 million at June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
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10. risk management & liabilit y
NES is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft or damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and
omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. NES is an agency of the Metropolitan Government and is
covered under the Tennessee Governmental Tort Liability Act, TCA 29-20-101, et al, (the “Act”) and is self-insured
under the act for tort liability. NES is immune from any award or judgment for death, bodily injury and/or property
damage in excess of the limits as set forth in the Act. Therefore, NES has not secured insurance coverage in excess
of such limits. NES is not a participant in the Metropolitan Government Insurance Pool (the “Pool”) for coverage of
most property losses. With some of the sub-limits of the Pool coverage being reached as a result of the damage
sustained by many participants of the Pool during the flood of 2010, NES deemed it prudent to withdraw from the
Pool and obtain commercial property insurance that would no longer have shared sub-limits.
NES is self-insured for employee medical, dental, and vision claims and self-insured up to $100,000 for employee
medical claims. The changes in the insurance reserves for medical, dental and vision benefits for active employees
and retirees for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 are as follows ($000 omitted):
BALANCE – JUNE 30, 2013
PAYMENTS
INCURRED CLAIMS
BALANCE – JUNE 30, 2014
PAYMENTS
INCURRED CLAIMS
BALANCE – JUNE 30, 2015

$ 2,488
(20,959)
21,455
2,984
(22,899)
23,056
$ 3,141

NES continues to carry commercial insurance for all other risks of loss, including a retention with excess workers’
compensation coverage and employee health and accident insurance. Settled claims resulting from these risks
have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.
NES is party to various lawsuits filed against it in the normal course of business. Management does not believe that
damages, if any, arising from outstanding litigation will have a material effect on the financial position of NES.
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11. related par t y transactions
NES had related party balances and transactions as a result of providing electric power to the Metropolitan
Government and entities of the Metropolitan Government, as well as making tax-equivalent payments to the
Metropolitan Government and other payments to entities of the Metropolitan Government.
THESE BAL ANCES AND TR ANSACTIONS A S OF AND FOR THE YE ARS ENDED
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014 ARE SUMMARIZED A S FOLLOWS ($000 OMITTED):
2015

2014

BALANCES:		
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

$ 3,763

$ 3,003

TRANSACTIONS:		
	COMMERCIAL AND INDUSTRIAL REVENUE –
METROPOLITAN GOVERNMENT ENTITIES

64,799

60,154

	OUTDOOR LIGHTING –
METROPOLITAN GOVERNMENT ENTITIES

9,179

9,002

	TAX EQUIVALENTS OPERATING EXPENSE –
METROPOLITAN GOVERNMENT ENTITIES

31,396

30,405

During 2015, NES and the Metropolitan Government of Nashville agreed to split the cost of the development of
the underground infrastructure that would serve the West Riverfront Park and Amphitheater. Installation of this
additional infrastructure provides a more reliable level of service for the facility while expanding the existing
downtown network. The total contribution made by NES was $0.2 million.
During 2014, NES and the Metropolitan Government of Nashville reached an agreement in which the Music City
Convention Authority receivable of $2.8 million at June 30, 2013, was exchanged for land that was of a similar value.
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12. commitments
NES has no generating capacity and purchases all of its power from the Tennessee Valley Authority (“TVA”)
pursuant to a Power Contract dated December 19, 1977 (the “Power Contract”). The Power Contract had an
initial term of 20 years, but beginning on December 19, 1987, and on each subsequent anniversary thereof, the
contract has been and is automatically extended for additional one year renewal terms beyond its then existing
time of expiration. The Power Contract, however, is subject to earlier termination by either party on not less
than ten years’ written notice.
The Power Contract provides that the Board may sell power to all customers in its service area, except federal
installations having contract demands greater than 5,000 kW and large customers as determined by a calculation
outlined in TVA’s Industrial Service Policy whom TVA may serve directly. At the present time, TVA does not directly
serve any customer located within the service area of the Electric System.
The Power Contract contains provisions that establish the wholesale rates, resale rates and terms and conditions
under which power is to be purchased by TVA and distributed to the customers of NES. Under the Power Contract,
TVA, on a monthly basis, may determine and make adjustments in the wholesale rate schedule with corresponding
adjustments in resale rate schedules necessary to enable TVA to meet all requirements of the Tennessee Valley
Authority Act of 1933, as amended (the “TVA Act”), and the tests and provisions of TVA’s bond resolutions.
NES purchased power totaling $929.7 million from TVA during the year ending June 30, 2015. The Power Contract
establishes the resale rates that NES and other distributors charge the ultimate power consumers. These rates
are revised from time to time to reflect changes in costs, including changes in the wholesale cost of power. While
the wholesale rates are uniformly applicable to all distributors of TVA power under the present power contracts
with distributors such as NES, the retail resale rates will vary among distributors of TVA power depending upon
the respective distributor’s retail customer distribution costs. The rates of TVA for the sale of electric power in
the TVA region and its contracts with distributors, including TVA, are structured with the intent to achieve the
TVA Act’s objective of the distributors of TVA power, including NES, to operate the respective distribution systems
on a nonprofit basis and to provide a wide and ample supply of power at the lowest feasible rates.
NES’ retail resale rates are subject to TVA’s review and approval under the provisions, terms and conditions of
the Power Contract. The Power Contract provides for revisions to the resale rates that may be charged by NES
when necessary to permit NES to operate on a self-supporting and financially sound basis. NES is not aware of
any pending legislation that would propose to make its retail electric rates subject to regulation by any third
party or agency other than TVA. The Power Contract further provides that if the resale rates set forth therein do
not provide sufficient revenues for the operation and maintenance of the Electric System on a self-supporting,
financially-sound basis, including debt service, TVA and NES shall agree to changes in rates to provide increased
revenues. Similarly, if the rates and charges produce excess revenues, the Power Contract provides that the
parties will agree to appropriate reductions. Since the date of the Power Contract, the wholesale and resale
rates have been adjusted from time to time.
In 2014, NES entered into an agreement with a general contractor for the construction of its new North Service
and Training Center. The contract term is set to expire on October 31, 2015. The contract’s not to exceed value
is $12.5 million of which $10.1 million has been expended as of June 30, 2015.
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13. subsequent events
In August 2015, the Board approved an agreement between the Employee Association of NES and management
for a period of five years, effective July 1, 2015. The agreement amended the Nashville Electric Service Retirement
Annuity and Survivors Plan with respect to early retirement options. This change increased the total pension
liability at that time by approximately $6.0 million. The agreement also increased non-supervisory pay by 3.0 percent
in fiscal 2016.
NES has evaluated subsequent events through October 28, 2015, the issuance date of the financial statements,
and has determined that there are no other subsequent events that require disclosure.
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